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3 .............. MEDIA ......................................................... Title: Updating FM Radio Directional Antenna Verification (MB Docket No. 21–422). 
Summary: The Commission will consider a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to allow 

applicants proposing directional FM antennas the option of verifying the directional 
antenna pattern through computer modeling. 

* * * * * 
The meeting will be webcast with 

open captioning at: www.fcc.gov/live. 
Open captioning will be provided as 
well as a text only version on the FCC 
website. Other reasonable 
accommodations for people with 
disabilities are available upon request. 
In your request, include a description of 
the accommodation you will need and 
a way we can contact you if we need 
more information. Last minute requests 
will be accepted but may be impossible 
to fill. Send an email to: fcc504@fcc.gov 
or call the Consumer & Governmental 
Affairs Bureau at 202–418–0530. 

Additional information concerning 
this meeting may be obtained from the 
Office of Media Relations, (202) 418– 
0500. Audio/Video coverage of the 
meeting will be broadcast live with 
open captioning over the internet from 
the FCC Live web page at www.fcc.gov/ 
live. 

Dated: November 18, 2021. 
Marlene Dortch, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2021–25591 Filed 11–22–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6712–01–P 

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

Notice of Agreement Filed 

The Commission hereby gives notice 
of the filing of the following agreement 
under the Shipping Act of 1984. 
Interested parties may submit 
comments, relevant information, or 
documents regarding the agreement to 
the Secretary by email at Secretary@
fmc.gov, or by mail, Federal Maritime 
Commission, Washington, DC 20573. 
Comments will be most helpful to the 
Commission if received within 12 days 
of the date this notice appears in the 
Federal Register. Copies of agreement 
are available through the Commission’s 
website (www.fmc.gov) or by contacting 
the Office of Agreements at (202) 523– 
5793 or tradeanalysis@fmc.gov. 

Agreement No.: 012246–001. 
Agreement Name: EUKOR/Mitsui 

O.S.K. Lines, Ltd. Space Charter 
Agreement. 

Parties: EUKOR Car Carriers, Inc.; and 
Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Ltd. 

Filing Party: Rebecca Fenneman; 
Jeffrey/Fenneman Law and Strategy 
PLLC. 

Synopsis: The amendment would 
update EUKOR’s address and remove all 
authority for the parties to jointly 
negotiate or procure terminal services in 
the United States. 

Proposed Effective Date: 12/24/2021. 
Location: https://www2.fmc.gov/ 

FMC.Agreements.Web/Public/ 
AgreementHistory/303. 

Agreement No.: 201333–002. 
Agreement Name: North Carolina- 

Virginia Port Terminal Cooperative 
Working Agreement. 

Parties: North Carolina State Ports 
Authority; Virginia International 
Terminals, LLC; and Virginia Port 
Authority. 

Filing Party: David Monroe; GKG Law, 
P.C. 

Synopsis: The amendment extends 
the duration of the Agreement through 
December 31, 2022. 

Proposed Effective Date: 12/25/2021. 
Location: https://www2.fmc.gov/ 

FMC.Agreements.Web/Public/ 
AgreementHistory/27474. 

Dated: November 18, 2021. 
Rachel E. Dickon, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2021–25520 Filed 11–22–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6730–02–P 

FEDERAL MEDIATION AND 
CONCILIATION SERVICE 

Privacy Act of 1974; System of 
Records 

AGENCY: Federal Mediation and 
Conciliation Service. 
ACTION: Notice of a modified system of 
records. 

SUMMARY: In accordance with the 
Privacy Act of 1974, the Federal 
Mediation and Conciliation Service 
(FMCS) proposes to amend and reissue 
a current system of records notice, titled 
FMCS–0005, Religious Accommodation 
System, with a change in title to 
Reasonable Accommodation System. 
The system will include information 
that FMCS collects and maintains for 
applicants for employment and federal 
employees who request and/or receive 
reasonable accommodations for medical 
or religious reasons. The notice 
amendment adds medical 
accommodations. It also includes 
administrative updates to refine details 
published under the summary, 

supplementary information, system 
name, authority for maintenance of the 
system, purpose of the system, 
categories of individuals covered by the 
system, categories of records in the 
system, record source categories, routine 
uses, policies and practices for storage 
of records, administrative safeguards, 
and record access procedures. These 
sections are amended to refine 
previously published information about 
the system of records. The addresses, for 
further information contact, system 
number, security classification, system 
location, system managers, policies and 
practices for retrieval of records, 
policies and practices for retention and 
disposal of records, contesting records, 
and notification procedures remain 
unchanged. This amended SORN 
deletes and supersedes the SORN 
published in Federal Register on 
October 27, 2021. 
DATES: This system of records will be 
effective without further notice on 
December 23, 2021 unless otherwise 
revised pursuant to comments received. 
New routine uses will be effective on 
December 23, 2021. Comments must be 
received on or before December 23, 
2021. 

ADDRESSES: You may send comments, 
identified by FMCS–0005 by any of the 
following methods: 

• Mail: Office of General Counsel, 250 
E Street SW, Washington, DC 20427. 

• Email: ogc@fmcs.gov. Include 
FMCS–0005 on the subject line of the 
message. 

• Fax: (202) 606–5444. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Doug Jones, Director of Information 
Technology, at djones@fmcs.gov or 202– 
606–5483. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The notice 
amendment adds medical 
accommodations. It also includes 
administrative updates to refine details 
published under the summary, 
supplementary information, system 
name, authority for maintenance of the 
system, purpose of the system, 
categories of individuals covered by the 
system, categories of records in the 
system, record source categories, routine 
uses, policies and practices for storage 
of records, administrative safeguards, 
and record access procedures. These 
sections are amended to refine 
previously published information about 
the system of records. The addresses, for 
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further information contact, system 
number, security classification, system 
location, system managers, policies and 
practices for retrieval of records, 
policies and practices for retention and 
disposal of records, contesting records, 
and notification procedures remain 
unchanged. 

In accordance with the Privacy Act of 
1974, 5 U.S.C. 552(a), this system is 
needed for collecting, storing, and 
maintaining records on applicants for 
employment, employees, and other 
individuals who participate in FMCS 
programs or activities who request or 
receive reasonable accommodations 
from FMCS for religious or medical 
reasons. 

Title V of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, as amended, prohibits 
discrimination in services and 
employment based on disability, and 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1974 
prohibits discrimination, including 
based on religion. These prohibitions on 
discrimination require Federal agencies 
to provide reasonable accommodations 
to individuals with disabilities and 
those with sincerely held religious 
beliefs unless doing so would impose an 
undue hardship. In some instances, 
individuals may request modifications 
to their workspace, schedule, duties, or 
other requirements for documented 
medical reasons that may not qualify as 
a disability, such as a temporary 
medical condition, but may necessitate 
an appropriate modification to 
workplace policies and practices. FMCS 
may address those requests pursuant to 
the general authority of the Director 
contained in Title 29 of the United 
States Code. 

Reasonable accommodations may 
include, but are not limited to: Making 
existing facilities readily accessible to 
individuals with disabilities; 
restructuring jobs, modifying work 
schedules or places of work, and 
providing flexible scheduling for 
medical appointments or religious 
observance; acquiring or modifying 
equipment or examinations or training 
materials; providing qualified readers 
and interpreters, personal assistants, 
service animals; granting permission to 
wear religious dress, hairstyles, or facial 
hair or to observe a religious prohibition 
against wearing certain garments; 
considering requests for medical and 
religious exemptions to specific 
workplace requirements; and making 
other modifications to workplace 
policies and practices. 

FMCS processes requests for 
reasonable accommodations from 
employees and applicants for 
employment, respectively, who require 
an accommodation due to a medical or 

religious reason; and processes requests 
based on documented medical reasons 
that may not qualify as a disability but 
that necessitate an appropriate 
modification to workplace policies and 
practices. The request, documentation 
provided in support of the request, any 
evaluation conducted internally, or by a 
third party under contract to FMCS, the 
decision regarding whether to grant or 
deny a request, and the details and 
conditions of the reasonable 
accommodation are all included in this 
system of records. 

SYSTEM NAME AND NUMBER: 

FMCS–0005 Reasonable 
Accommodation System. 

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: 

Unclassified. 

SYSTEM LOCATION: 

Federal Mediation and Conciliation 
Service, Office of General Counsel 
(OGC), 250 E Street SW, Washington, 
DC 20427. 

SYSTEM MANAGER(S): 

Angie Titcombe, Director of Human 
Resources, and Natalie Samuels, 
Benefits and Retirement Specialist. 
Doug Jones, Director of Information 
Technology, will not access content in 
the internal folder, will only 
troubleshoot any technical issues 
regarding electronic files. Send mail to 
Federal Mediation and Conciliation 
Service, 250 E Street Southwest, 
Washington, DC 20427. 

AUTHORITY FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE SYSTEM: 

29 U.S.C. 172, et seq.; Title VII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 
2000e, et seq.; 42 U.S.C. 12101; The 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 
701, 791, 794; E.O. 13164, as amended 
by E.O. 13478; E.O. 13548; E.O. 14043; 
29 CFR part 1605; 29 CFR part 1614; 29 
CFR part 1615; 29 CFR part 1630. 

PURPOSE(S) OF THE SYSTEM: 

The purpose of this system is to 
provide a system for collecting, 
processing, and maintaining religious 
and medical accommodation requests 
on applicants for employment, 
employees, and other individuals who 
participate in FMCS programs or 
activities who request or receive 
reasonable accommodations or other 
appropriate modifications from FMCS 
for medical or religious reasons; to 
process, evaluate, and make decisions 
on individual requests; details of 
request, including final determinations, 
and any supporting documentation; and 
to track and report the processing of 
such requests in FMCS to comply with 

applicable requirements in law and 
policy. 

CATEGORIES OF INDIVIDUALS COVERED BY THE 
SYSTEM: 

The categories of individuals covered 
in the system of records includes both 
current and former Federal employees 
who have requested religious and 
medical accommodations, applicants for 
employment, and other individuals who 
participate in FMCS programs or 
activities who request or receive 
reasonable accommodations or other 
appropriate modifications from FMCS 
for medical or religious reasons. 

CATEGORIES OF RECORDS IN THE SYSTEM: 
These records contain the following: 
• Requester’s name; 
• Requester’s status (applicant or 

employee); 
• Requester’s contact information 

(addresses, phone numbers, and email 
addresses); 

• Date of the request; 
• Employee’s position title, grade, 

series, step; 
• Description of religious belief and 

how it will impact the ability to comply 
with agency requirements and perform 
official duties; 

• Description of the medical 
condition or disability and any medical 
documentation provided in support of 
the request; 

• Supplemental medical records or 
medical certification documents in 
support of the request or determination; 

• Description of the accommodation 
being requested; 

• Description of previous requests for 
accommodation; 

• Whether the request was granted or 
denied, and if denied the reason for the 
denial; 

• Documentation of how the request 
was made; 

• Documentation of any extenuating 
circumstances that prevent FMCS from 
meeting relevant timeframes; 

• The sources of technical assistance 
consulted in trying to identify a possible 
reasonable accommodation; 

• Any reports or evaluations prepared 
in determining whether to grant or deny 
the request; and 

• Any other information collected or 
developed in connection with the 
request for a reasonable 
accommodation. 

RECORD SOURCE CATEGORIES: 
Information in this system of records 

is provided by: 
1. The Federal employee, applicant, 

or other individual submitting an 
accommodation form. 

2. FMCS Human Resources officials 
who provide confirmation approval or 
denial of requests. 
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3. Supervisors who provide 
information regarding how the requests 
would impact agency operations. 

4. Medical providers or professionals 
who evaluate the request or who 
provide supplemental or supporting 
documentation. 

5. Religious or spiritual advisors or 
institutions who evaluate the request or 
who provide supplemental or 
supporting documentation. 

Additional record source categories 
could include documents pertaining to 
the employee’s religion and religious 
practices, and medical requests. 

ROUTINE USES OF RECORDS MAINTAINED IN THE 
SYSTEM, INCLUDING CATEGORIES OF USERS AND 
PURPOSES OF SUCH USES: 

In addition to those disclosures 
generally permitted under 5 U.S.C. 
552a(b) of the Privacy Act, all or a 
portion of the records or information 
contained in this system may be 
disclosed to authorized entities, as is 
determined to be relevant and 
necessary, outside the FMCS as a 
routine use pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 
552a(b)(3) as follows: 

(a) To disclose pertinent information 
to the appropriate Federal, State, or 
local agency responsible for 
investigating, prosecuting, enforcing, or 
implementing a statute, rule regulation 
or order where FMCS becomes aware of 
an indication of a violation or potential 
violation of civil or criminal laws or 
regulations. 

(b) To disclose information to the 
National Archives and Records 
Administration (NARA) for use in its 
records management inspections; to the 
Government Accountability Office 
(GAO) for oversight purposes; to the 
Department of Justice (DOJ) to obtain 
that department’s advice regarding 
disclosure obligations under the 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA); or 
to the Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) to obtain that office’s advice 
regarding obligations under the Privacy 
Act. 

(c) To disclose information to the 
National Archives and Records 
Administration (NARA) or the General 
Services Administration in records 
management inspections conducted 
under authority of 44 U.S.C. 2904 and 
2906. 

(d) To disclose information to 
contractors, grantees, experts, 
consultants, detailees, and other non- 
Government employees performing or 
working on a contract, service, or other 
assignment for the Federal Government 
when necessary to accompany an 
agency function related to this system of 
records. 

(e) To officials of labor organizations 
recognized under 5 U.S.C. Chapter 71 

upon receipt of a formal request and in 
accordance with the conditions of 5 
U.S.C. 7114 when relevant and 
necessary to their duties of exclusive 
representation concerning personnel 
policies, practices, and matters affecting 
working conditions. 

(f) To disclose information to a 
Member of Congress or a congressional 
office in response to an inquiry made on 
behalf of, and at the request of, an 
individual who is the subject of the 
record. 

(g) To disclose information when 
FMCS determines that the records are 
relevant to a proceeding before a court, 
grand jury, or administrative or 
adjudicative body when the adjudicator 
determines the records to be relevant to 
the proceeding. 

(h) To disclose information to another 
Federal agency, to a court, or to a party 
in litigation before a court or in an 
administrative proceeding being 
conducted by a Federal agency when 
the Government is a party to the judicial 
or administrative proceeding. Such 
disclosure is permitted only when it is 
relevant and necessary to the litigation 
or proceeding. 

(i) To any agency, organization, or 
person for the purposes of performing 
audit or oversight operations related to 
the operation of this system of records 
as authorized by law, but only 
information necessary and relevant to 
such audit or oversight function. 

(j) To disclose information to a 
spiritual leader, religious scholar, 
medical professional, or medical 
provider when necessary to obtain 
information relevant to the request. 

(k) To another Federal agency, 
including but not limited to the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission 
and the Office of Special Counsel to 
obtain advice regarding statutory, 
regulatory, policy, and other 
requirements related to reasonable 
accommodation. 

(l) To an authorized appeal grievance 
examiner, formal complaints examiner, 
administrative judge, equal employment 
opportunity investigator, arbitrator, or 
other duly authorized official engages in 
investigation or settlement of a 
grievance, complaint, or appeal filed by 
an individual who requested a 
reasonable accommodation or other 
appropriate modification. 

(m) To a Federal agency, FMCS 
personnel, or entity authorized to 
procure assistive technologies and 
services in response to a request for 
reasonable accommodation. 

(n) To FMCS clients needing to 
accommodate FMCS employees 
performing official duties. 

(o) To first aid and safety personnel if 
the individual’s medical condition 
requires emergency treatment. 

(p) To another Federal agency 
pursuant to a written agreement with 
FMCS to provide services (such as 
medical evaluations), when necessary, 
in support of reasonable 
accommodation decisions. 

(q) To appropriate agencies, entities, 
and persons when (1) FMCS suspects or 
has confirmed that there has been a 
breach of the system of records, (2) 
FMCS has determined that as a result of 
the suspected or confirmed breach there 
is a risk of harm to individuals, FMCS 
(including its information systems, 
programs, and operations), the Federal 
Government, or national security; and 
(3) the disclosure made to such 
agencies, entities, and persons is 
reasonably necessary to assist in 
connection with FMCS’s efforts to 
respond to the suspected or confirmed 
breach or to prevent, minimize, or 
remedy such harm. 

(r) To another Federal agency or 
Federal entity, when FMCS determines 
that information from this system of 
records is reasonably necessary to assist 
the recipient agency or entity in (1) 
responding to a suspected or confirmed 
breach or (2) preventing, minimizing, or 
remedying the risk of harm to 
individuals, the recipient agency or 
entity (including its information 
systems, programs, and operations), the 
Federal Government, or national 
security, resulting from a suspected or 
confirmed breach. 

POLICIES AND PRACTICES FOR STORAGE OF 
RECORDS: 

These records are maintained in hard 
copy and electronic form in locations 
only accessible to authorized personnel. 
Electronic records are stored on the 
agency’s internal servers with restricted 
access to authorized Human Resources 
staff and designated deciding officials as 
determined by agency policy. Hard copy 
records are stored in a locked cabinet 
accessible to authorized Human 
Resources staff and designated deciding 
officials as determined by agency 
policy. 

POLICIES AND PRACTICES FOR RETRIEVAL OF 
RECORDS: 

These records are retrieved by the 
name or other programmatic identifier 
assigned to an individual in the 
electronic database and paper filing 
system. 

POLICIES AND PRACTICES FOR RETENTION AND 
DISPOSAL OF RECORDS: 

All records are retained and disposed 
of in accordance with General Records 
Schedule 2.3, issued by the National 
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Archives and Records Administration. 
Records are updated as needed, retained 
for three years after separation and/or 
for the entirety of the employee’s active 
employment, and destroyed by 
shredding or deleting. 

ADMINSTRATIVE, TECHNICAL, AND PHYSICAL 
SAFEGUARDS: 

Records are located in a locked file 
storage area or stored electronically in 
locations only accessible to authorized 
personnel requiring agency security 
credentials. Access is restricted, and 
accessible to limited Human Resources 
officials, and/or individuals in a need- 
to-know capacity. FMCS buildings are 
guarded and monitored by security 
personnel, cameras, ID checks, and 
other physical security measures. 

RECORD ACCESS PROCEDURES: 
If an employee would like access to 

their Religious or Medical 
Accommodation Form, please send a 
request with the specific information 
needed to the resource mailbox at 
FMCSMedicalInfo@fmcs.gov. A copy of 
the requested information will be 
provided via email in an encrypted file. 

CONTESTING RECORDS PROCEDURES: 
See 29 CFR 1410.6, Requests for 

correction or amendment of records, on 
how to contest the content of any 
records. Privacy Act requests to amend 
or correct records may be submitted to 
the Privacy Office at privacy@fmcs.gov, 
FMCS 250 E Street SW, Washington, DC 
20427. Also, see https://www.fmcs.gov/ 
privacy-policy/. 

NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES: 
See 29 CFR 1410.3(a), Individual 

access requests. 

EXEMPTIONS PROMULGATED FOR THE SYSTEM: 
None. 

HISTORY: 
This amended SORN deletes and 

supersedes the SORN published in 
Federal Register on October 27, 2021, at 
86 FR 59389. 

Dated: November 17, 2021. 
Sarah Cudahy, 
General Counsel. 
[FR Doc. 2021–25488 Filed 11–22–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6732–01–P 

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Proposed Agency Information 
Collection Activities; Comment 
Request 

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. 
ACTION: Notice, request for comment. 

SUMMARY: The Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System (Board) invites 
comment on a proposal to extend, 
without revision, the Quarterly Savings 
and Loan Holding Company Report (FR 
2320; OMB No. 7100–0345). 
DATES: Comments must be submitted on 
or before January 24, 2022. 
ADDRESSES: You may submit comments, 
identified by FR 2320, by any of the 
following methods: 

• Agency Website: https://
www.federalreserve.gov/. Follow the 
instructions for submitting comments at 
https://www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
foia/proposedregs.aspx. 

• Email: regs.comments@
federalreserve.gov. Include the OMB 
number or FR number in the subject line 
of the message. 

• Fax: (202) 452–3819 or (202) 452– 
3102. 

• Mail: Ann E. Misback, Secretary, 
Board of Governors of the Federal 
Reserve System, 20th Street and 
Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, 
DC 20551. 

All public comments are available 
from the Board’s website at https://
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/foia/ 
proposedregs.aspx as submitted, unless 
modified for technical reasons or to 
remove personally identifiable 
information at the commenter’s request. 
Accordingly, comments will not be 
edited to remove any confidential 
business information, identifying 
information, or contact information. 
Public comments may also be viewed 
electronically or in paper in Room 146, 
1709 New York Avenue NW, 
Washington, DC 20006, between 9:00 
a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on weekdays. For 
security reasons, the Board requires that 
visitors make an appointment to inspect 
comments. You may do so by calling 
(202) 452–3684. Upon arrival, visitors 
will be required to present valid 
government-issued photo identification 
and to submit to security screening in 
order to inspect and photocopy 
comments. 

Additionally, commenters may send a 
copy of their comments to the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Desk 
Officer for the Federal Reserve Board, 
Office of Information and Regulatory 
Affairs, Office of Management and 
Budget, New Executive Office Building, 
Room 10235, 725 17th Street NW, 
Washington, DC 20503, or by fax to 
(202) 395–6974. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Reserve Board Clearance 
Officer—Nuha Elmaghrabi—Office of 
the Chief Data Officer, Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve 

System, Washington, DC 20551, (202) 
452–3829. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On June 
15, 1984, OMB delegated to the Board 
authority under the Paperwork 
Reduction Act (PRA) to approve and 
assign OMB control numbers to 
collections of information conducted or 
sponsored by the Board. In exercising 
this delegated authority, the Board is 
directed to take every reasonable step to 
solicit comment. In determining 
whether to approve a collection of 
information, the Board will consider all 
comments received from the public and 
other agencies. 

During the comment period for this 
proposal, a copy of the proposed PRA 
OMB submission, including the draft 
reporting form and instructions, 
supporting statement, and other 
documentation, will be made available 
on the Board’s public website at https:// 
www.federalreserve.gov/apps/ 
reportforms/review.aspx or may be 
requested from the agency clearance 
officer, whose name appears above. 
Final versions of these documents will 
be made available at https://
www.reginfo.gov/public/do/PRAMain, if 
approved. 

Request for Comment on Information 
Collection Proposal 

The Board invites public comment on 
the following information collection, 
which is being reviewed under 
authority delegated by the OMB under 
the PRA. Comments are invited on the 
following: 

a. Whether the proposed collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the Board’s functions, 
including whether the information has 
practical utility; 

b. The accuracy of the Board’s 
estimate of the burden of the proposed 
information collection, including the 
validity of the methodology and 
assumptions used; 

c. Ways to enhance the quality, 
utility, and clarity of the information to 
be collected; 

d. Ways to minimize the burden of 
information collection on respondents, 
including through the use of automated 
collection techniques or other forms of 
information technology; and 

e. Estimates of capital or startup costs 
and costs of operation, maintenance, 
and purchase of services to provide 
information. 

At the end of the comment period, the 
comments and recommendations 
received will be analyzed to determine 
the extent to which the Board should 
modify the proposal. 
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